

KKOS

PRODUCT OF

*Remington-Brand*

MADE IN U.S.A.

LIBRARY BUREAU DEPARTMENT  
BRANCHED EVERYWHERE

REMOVABLE LABEL GUIDE

CATALOG NO. 4550L 1/5

Form BC 126

June 1954-

OFFICIAL NO. 1783

BROADCASTING STATION LICENSE RECORD

FM BROADCAST

KKOS (EFF: 8-28-75)

XKARL-FM (LET. 2-5-65)

Date first licensed DECEMBER 6, 1965

Call letters XKOLH

SEE CARD #2

Station location Carlsbad, California

XWEST BROADCASTING CORPORATION (ALH 12-11-69, EFF: 12-16-69)

XRADIO EARL, INC. (ALH 5-9-66 EFF: 5-9-66)

XGORDON BAMBRICK and IRENE B. BAMBRICK d/b as CARLSBAD BROADCASTERS (BAPH-9-11-64, EFF: 10-5-64)

XPATRICK F. MICHAELS (BAPH 9-25-62 EFF: 10-5-62)

Name of licensee XLAWRENCE W. FELT

approx. 5 mil ESE of city at Squares Res., Carlsbad, California (PH-5-25-77)

XCliff Trailer Park, Macario Rd., Carlsbad, Calif. (BMPH 1-6-65)(LH 12-6-65)

X3001 Carlsbad Boulevard, Carlsbad, California (BMPH 5-10-62)

Transmitter location XNorth Carlsbad Reservoir, North Carlsbad, California

800 Grand Avenue, Carlsbad, California (SH 10-21-75)

X527 Elm Avenue, Carlsbad, California (BRCH 8-26-65)(LH 12-6-65)

Main Studio Location X3001 Carlsbad Boulevard, Carlsbad, California

# CONSTRUCTION PERMIT AND LICENSE RECORD

APPL. NO.	DATE ISSUED	FREQ.	POWER	TIME DIV.	PERIOD FROM TO
BPH-2499 HAAT: Construction permit for a new FM broadcast station.	5-24-61 50 ft.	95.9mc Ch. 240	930w TPO: 250w	Unl.	7-24-61 1-24-62
BMPH-7050 (1)	1-16-62	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499) for extension of completion date to April 24, 1962			
BMPH-7174 & BMPH-7175 (2)	5-10-62	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499 as mod.) for ext. of completion date to 7-31-62. Chg. ant.-trans. loc.; delete RC; chg. type ant. (Jampro JA-2A, 2 sec.); chgs in ant. sys. (incr. height); <del>delete</del> chg. type trans. (ITA FM-1000C); TPO $\pm$ 580w; ERP: 1kw; HAAT = 63'			
BMPH-7309 (3)	9-25-62	Mod. of CP (BPH-2499 as mod) for ext. of completion date to 2-1-63			
BAPH-286 EFF:	9-25-62 10-5-62	Voluntary assignment of construction permit to Patrick F. Michaels.			
BMPH-7493 (4)	2-12-63	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499, as mod.) for ext. of completion date to 4-15-63.			
BMPH-7561 (5)	4-17-63	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499, as mod.) for ext. of completion date to 6-15-63.			
BAPH-333	9-11-64	Voluntary assignment of construction permit to Gordon Bambrick and Irene B. Bambrick dba Carlsbad Broadcasters			
BMPH-7629 (6)	9-11-64	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499, as mod.) for ext. of completion date to; 12-31-64.			
BMPH-8061 HAAT: 94' (H) 74' (V)	1-6-65	95.9mcs Ch.#240	ERP: 3kw(H&V) TPO: 3.4kw	Unl.	7-24-61 1-31-65
		Mod. of CP(BPH-2499, as mod.) to chg. ant.-trans & studio loc.; establish RC point at studio loc.; chg. type trans. (Gates FM-5C) & type ant. (Moblely MM 2-2, 2 hor. & 2 vert. secs.); and incr TPO, ERP & HAAT; and extend completion date.			
BMPH-8115 (1)	1-14-65	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499, as mod.) for ext. of completion date to 6-30-65.			
BMPH-8364 (2)	7-27-65	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499, as mod.) for ext. of completion date to 8-15-65			

Form BC 126

June 1984

#2

# BROADCASTING STATION LICENSE RECORD

Date first licensed .....

Call letters KARL-FM .....

Station location .....

Name of licensee TRI-CITIES BROADCASTING, INC. (AL gr 7/18/75 EFF: 8/25/75) .....

Transmitter location .....

Main studio location .....

# CONSTRUCTION PERMIT AND LICENSE RECORD

Appl. No.	Date Issued	Freq.	Power	Time Div.	Period From - To
BRGH-636 (3)	8-26-65	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499) to change studio location and remote control point to 527 Elm Avenue, Carlsbad, California.			
BLH-2945 HAAT: 94' (h) 74' (v)	12-6-65	95.9mc.	ERP: 3kw. (h&v) U		12-6-65 12-1-68
		ch. #240	TPO: 3.3kw.		
		Lic to cover CP(BPH-8499 as mod) which authorized a new FM broadcast station; and specify trans as (Collins-830E-1A).			
BALH-892 EFF:	5-9-66 5-9-66	Voluntary assignment of license to RADIO EARL, INC.			
BTC-5727 EFF:	9-24-68	VOL. TC			
BRH-1785(L)	12-20-68	Renewal of license			12-20 12-1-71
BALH-1267	12-11-69	Vol. AL	EFF: 12-16-69		
BRH-1785(L)	11-26-71	RENEWAL OF LICENSE			12-1-74
EBSA	5-22-72				
BPH-8983 HAAT: 96ft (H&V)	6-28-74	95.9mhz	ERP: 3kilo (H&V) TPO: 3.4kw		
		CP install new ant., chg TPO & HAAT			
COMTEL	4-22-75	Auth. granted to suspend oper. thru			6-28-75 7-15-75
COMTEL	7-2-75	Auth. granted to suspend oper. thru			8-15-75
BRH-1785(L)	7-18-75	RENEWAL			12-1-77
BAPLH-177	7/18 '75	Vol AL	EFF: 8/25/75		
COMTEL	8-12-75	Auth. granted to suspend oper. thru			9-16-75
BLH-6747(L) HAAT: 96	8-18-75	Lic. (BPH-8983, as mod.) - Changes.			12-1-77
		(H&V) - ERP: 3kw (H&V)	RC		
BSH-1785(1)	10-21-75	ML to chg. SL & RC			
EBSA	8-25-75				

NC-126  
June 1975

#3

# BROADCASTING STATION LICENSE RECORD

FM

Date first licensed .....

Call letters KKOS

Station location .....

Name of licensee SEE CARD #1

Transmitter location .....

Main studio location .....

# CONSTRUCTION PERMIT AND LICENSE RECORD

Appl. No.	Date Issued	Freq.	Power	Time Div.	Period From- To-
BPH-10243 HAAT: 300' (h&v) (L)	5-25-77	95.9mhz #240	ERP: 3kw (h&v) (RC)	U	5-25-78
		CP chg TL, mke chg ant sys (decr hght);	chg ERP & HAAT		(decr
BPH-10713 HAAT: 300' (h&v) (L)	11-2-77	95.9mhz. #240	ERP: 3kw (h&v) (RC)	U	11-2-78
		CP install new Antenna			
BLH-7502 BLH-7647 BRH-1785(L)	7-3-78 6-14-78	(ISSUED TOGETHER) RENEWAL & MODIFICATION			12-1-80

APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

Name LAWRENCE W. FELT  
 (3001 Carlsbad Blvd., Carlsbad, California)

Call Letters WHR  
 Station location - Carlsbad, Calif.

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BPH-2499 Rec'd Filed	9-12-58 9-18-58 9-18-58	Construction permit for a new FM Broadcast Station to be operated on <del>95.3 mcs.</del> <sup>95.9mc CH-240</sup> <del>263.7mc-CH-279</del> Frequency: <del>95.3 mcs.</del> <sup>95.9mc</sup> <del>Ch. 237 236</del> <sup>95.7mc-CH-239</sup> Power: <del>17 kw</del> <sup>7.53 kw</sup> <del>4.28kw</del> 933 watts HAAT: <del>99 feet</del> 150 ft Transmitter: Gates, FM-5B 250B T-location: <del>3001 Carlsbad Blvd.</del> Carlsbad, California S-location: 3001 Carlsbad Blvd. Carlsbad, California STATION LOCATION: CARLSBAD, CALIFORNIA. (Engr.) Robert L. Weeks, La Mesa, Calif.	GRANTED	5-24-61
Amended Rec'd Filed	10-22-58 10-24-58 10-24-58	Amended to change frequency to <del>95.1mc-CH-236</del> .		
Amended R & F	12-9-58 12-11-58	Amended to change freq. to <del>92.5mc-CH-223</del> .		
AMENDMENT R & F	2-6-59 2-9-59	AMENDED to chge frequency to 95.7mc, CH-239, change ERP to 7.53 kw and change type antenna to Andrew-1302-2 <sup>nd</sup> (2-section)		

SEE CARD #2 FOR AMENDMENT



## APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

Aug. 1955

Call  
Letters ~~now~~ KCLBName LAWRENCE W. FELT  
Carlsbad, California

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
Amended R & F	3-19-59 3-23-59	Amended to change ERP to <del>4.28kw</del> change type antenna (Collins 37M-2-2-see-) and reduce height of supporting structure.	GRANTED	5-24-61
Amended R & F AMENDMENT Rec'd Filed (ORDER)	5-16-59 5-19-59 5-11-60 5-13-60 6-7-60	Amended to change frequency to <del>103.7mc, CH-279</del>  AMENDED to change frequency to 95.9mc CH 240; change ERP to 933 watts; change HAAT to 150 ft; change antenna-trans. loc. to Site of North Carlsbad Reservoir, North Carlsbad, Calif., change type antenna (COLLINS 37 M 4 (4 section) change type trans. (GATES FM 250B) and operate trans. by remote control from studio location  Atty. - Philip M. Baker Engr. - Nugent S. Sharp.		

AUG. 1955

Call  
Letters K C L BName LAWRENCE W. FELT  
Carlsbad, Calif.

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BMPH-7050 R & F	12-5-61 12-7-61	Mod. of C.P. (BPH-2499 which authorized a new FM Broadcast Station) for extension of completion date from 1-24-62 to 7-24-62.	GRANTED	1-16-62 to 4-24-62
BMPH-7174 R & F	3-28-62 4-2-62	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499, as mod. which auth. a new FM B/C Station) for extension of completion date from 4-24-62 to 7-1-62.	GRANTED	5-10-62 to 7-31-62 Issued with BMPH-7175
BMPH-7175 R & F	3-15-62 4-2-62	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499, as mod. which auth. a new FM B/C Station) to change ant-trans. location to "3001 Carlsbad Blvd., Carlsbad, California" (studio location); make changes in antenna system(incr.hght); change type antenna(JAMPRO JA-2A, 2 section) and type trans(ITA FM 1000C) (TPO 580w); delete remote control operation of trans; increase ERP from 930w to 998w; change HAAT from 150 ft to Minus 63 ft	GRANTED	5-10-62 Issued with BMPH-7175 7174

Engr. - Western Radio Systems, Inc.  
La Mesa, Calif.

Aug. 1955

## APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

Call  
Letters K C L B

PATRICK F. MICHAELS

Name  LAWRENCE W. FELT  
Carlsbad, California

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BAPH-286 Rec'd Filed	3-23-62 4-2-62 4-2-62	Voluntary assignment of construction permit to Patrick F. Michaels.	GRANTED EPF:	9-25-62 10-5-62
EMPH-7309 R & F	7-17-62 7-19-62	Mod. of CP (BPH-2499, as mod which auth a new FM B/C station) for extension of completion date from 7-31-62 to 10-15-62.	GRANTED	9-25-62 to 2-1-63
EMPH- Received	10-16-62 10-24-62	Mod. of CP (BPH-2499, as mod which auth a new FM B/C Station) to change type ant (JAMPRO-JA-4A-4 sections) and incr ERP from 1kw to 3kw.	Ret'd 11-1-62 re not in compliance with Commission Rules.	
EMPH-7493 R & F	1-11-63 1-15-63	Mod. of CP (BPH-2499, as mod which auth a new FM B/C station) for extension of completion date from 2-1-63 to 4-15-63.	GRANTED	2-12-63

APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

Call  
 Letters K.C.L.B.

Gordon Bambrick and Irene B. Bambrick dba Carlsbad Broadcasters  
 Name Patrick F. Michaels  
Carlsbad, California

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
EMPH-7561 R & F	3-20-63 3-22-63	Mod. of CP (BPH-2499, as mod which auth a new FM B/C station) for extension of completion date from 4-15-63 to 6-15-63.	GRANTED	4-17-63
EMPH-7629 R & F	6-14-63 6-17-63	Mod. of CP (BPH-2499, as mod which auth a new FM B/C station) for ext. of completion date from 6-15-63 to _____.	GRANTED	9-11-64
AMENDED R&F	5-13-64 5-14-64	AMENDED to request extension to 8-15-64		
BAPH-319 R & F	8-1-63 8-5-63	Voluntary assignment of construction permit (BPH-2499, as modified) to Assembly of God of Pacific Beach.	DISMISSED	3-16-64 per Sec. 1.566
BAPH-335 R & F	6-18-64 6-29-64	Voluntary assignment of construction permit to Gordon Bambrick and Irene B. Bambrick dba CARLSBAD BROADCASTERS	GRANTED EFF:	9-11-64 10-5-64

APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

Call Letters KARL-FM  
X CLM

Name X GORDON BAMBRICK AND IRENE B. BAMBRICK d/b as CARLSBAD BROADCASTERS  
CARLSBAD, CALIFORNIA

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BMPH-8061 H&F	11-3-64 11-9-64	Modification of CP (BPH-2499, as modified which authorized a new FM broadcast station) to increase ERP to 3kw (vertical and horizontal); increase HAAT to 94' (vertical and horizontal); change ant-trans location, studio location, and remote control point at Cliff Trailer Park, Marcario Road, Carlsbad, California; change type trans (Gates-FM-5G); increase TPO to 3.39kw; and change ant to dual polarized (Mobley-MM2-2, 2 vertical and 2 horizontal sections).	GRANTED	1-6-65 to 1-31-65
BMPH-8115 Received Filed	11-27-64 12-7-64 12-22-64	Modification of CP (BPH-2499 as modified which authorized a new FM broadcast station) for extension of completion date from 12-31-64 to 3-31-65.	GRANTED	1-14-65 to 6-30-65

## APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

AUG. 1955

Call  
Letters

KARL-FM

RADIO KARL, INC.

Name  GORDON BAMBRICK AND IRENE B. BAMBRICK D/B AS CARLSBAD BROADCASTERS  
CARLSBAD, CALIFORNIA

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BMPH-8364 R&F	6-21-65 6-24-65	Modification of CP (BPH-2499 as modified which authorized a new FM broadcast station) for extension of completion date from 6-30-65 to 7-31-65.	GRANTED to	7-27-65 8-15-65
BRCH-636 Rec'd Filed	8-10-65 8-11-65 8-11-65	Mod. of CP(BPH-2499) to change studio location and remote control point to 527 Elm Avenue, Carlsbad, California.	GRANTED	8-26-65
BLH-2945 Received Filed PROC. TEST 8-9-65	7-30-65 8-4-65 8-26-65	License to cover CP (BPH-2499 as modified) which authorized a new FM broadcast station; and specify trans as (Collins-830-1A).	GRANTED	12-6-65
BALH-892 R & F (Form 316)	3-10-66 4-22-66	Voluntary assignment of license to RADIO KARL, INC.	GRANTED EFF:	5-9-66 5-9-66
BTC-5727 R & F FEE PD:\$30	8-7-68 9-4-68 #456639	Voluntary acquisition of control (100%) of lic. corp. by Irene B. Bambrick thru transfer of stock from Gordon Bambrick Atty - Molnar & Gammon	GRANTED EFF:	9-24-68 10-22-68

FORM BC-121  
Aug. 1955

# APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

Call Letters KARL-FM

FAR WEST BROADCASTING CORPORATION

Name  RADIO KARL, INC.  
CARLSBAD, CALIFORNIA

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BH-1785 R & F #456150 \$75 Press: N 001 2 1958	8-27-68 9-3-68 9-3-68	Renewal of license. Lorie Molnar, atty. AMENDED 12-2-68 re: Programming	GRANTED	12-20-68
BALH-1267 R & F FEE PD: \$75 Pub. notice filed	9-12-69 9-24-69 #544577 10-7-69	Voluntary assignment of license to FAR WEST BROADCASTING CORPORATION REQ. WAIVER SEC. 1.597	GRANTED Eff:	12-11-69 12-16-69
	OCT 21 1969	Atty for assignor - Molnar & Gammon for assignee - McKenna & Wilkinson Request filed 10-21-69 by proposed assignee to operate station on a de facto basis pending Comm. action on AL AMENDED 12-4-69 - financial & programming data (assignee)		
Annual filing fee	\$156.00	paid 12-2-70. #647299. Credit \$104.00 to 1971 Fee.		

# APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

Call Letters KARL-FM

Name FAR WEST BROADCASTING CORPORATION  
Carlsbad, California

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BRH-1785 R & F P.N. PRESS SEP 22 1971	7-29-71 9-2-71 9-9-71	Renewal of License  Atty: Norman P. Leventhal (McKenna & Wilkinson)	GRANTED	11-26-71
BPH-8983 R & F #306581 \$50 Code 057 Press	5-14-74 5-17-74 5-21-74 JUN 18 1974	CP to install new antenna (Collins LPC-2, 2 sects. (H&V); chg. TPO and HAAT: 96' (H&V).	GRANTED	6-28-74
BRH-1785 R & F P.N. PRESS SEP 18 1974	7-26-74 8-1-74 8-1-74	Renewal of License  Atty.: John L. Tierney  AMENDED 8-6-74 re: engineering AMENDED 10-29-74 re: programming AMENDED 12-12-74 re: financial data	GRANTED COND'L	7-18-75



APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

KKOS

Call Letters \*KARL-FM

Name TRI-CITIES BROADCASTING, INC.  
\* FAR WEST BROADCASTING CORPORATION  
Carlsbad, Calif.

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BAPLH -177 R & F FEE PD: \$200 CODE 049	2-8-75 3-7-75 # 399255 APR 1 1975	Voluntary assignment of license and CP. (BPH-8983 - new antenna) to TRI-CITIES BROADCASTING, INC.  (SEE OVER)  Atty - McKenna, Wilkinson & Kittner (Carl Ramey)	GRANTED. EFF: gr' fee req Fee Pd	7/18/75 "cond'1" 8/25/75 9/18/75 W 476523
BLH-6747 R & F W 422036-\$100	4-18-75 5-1-75 5-5-75-057 PTA 5-9-75 PRESS AUG 1 1975	Lic.(BPH-8983, as mod.)-Changes.  Atty: McKenna, Wilkinson & Kittner (Carl R. Ramey)	GRANTED	8-18-75

RE: BAPLH -177 Atty was called 3-13-75 - CP not Incl.  
on applic., place of birth Bruce Chandler (sub 1)  
AMENDED 5-7-75 (assignee) re prog; Art of Stor-It-All, Inc.  
(name chge to assignee); demographic data & re comm survey  
& re assignor - inventory list; current bal. sheet  
AMENDED 7-3-75 - (assignor) statement re Sec VI (less than  
5); B/C int; re payment terms; & (re assignee) - re program  
financial data; assignment of contract;

APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

Call  
Letters KKOS

Tri-Cities Broadcasting, Inc.

Name Carlsbad, California

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BPH-10,243 Rec'd Filed \$100-586409 AC:00 ; PRESS: PN REC'D	6-26-76 6-29-76 8-9-76 6-30-76  OCT 21 1976 4-18-77	CP to chg.: TL: Approx 5.0 mi. ESE of city at Squares Res. Carlsbad, California, chg. ant. system (incr. hght) ERP: 2.75 KW (H&V) HAAT: 312.16' (H&V) 09 2.90 307.16' (H&V) 33° 09' 07" 117° 15' 33" Atty: ---- Engr: Floyd Hall, (Crestline, California)	GRANTED	5-25-77
AMENDED \$100-625928 AC:001	8-9-76 10-19-76	Additional engineering (contour maps)  (OVER)		
BRCH-1306 Rec'd Filed #597677\$100 Code 001 PRESS	7-20-76 7-28-76 10-20-76 7-30-76  DEC 8 1976	Mod. of license to operate by remote control from: 2655 Carlsbad Blvd., Carlsbad, Calif. (Second Remote Control Point)  302 1-8-77 PH 8-17		

BPH-10243 Continued

AMENDED 3-15-77 Financial Information.

AMENDED-3-28-77 SECTION IV-A(Ascertainment & Community Leader.

AMENDED 5-18-77 re chg. ERP: 2.90 KW{H&V} HAAT: 307.16' {H&V} make chg. ant. system{decr hght} correct coordinates N. Lat. 33o 09' 09"

## APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

Call  
Letters KKOBName TRI-CITIES BROADCASTING, INC.  
Carlsbad, California

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BRH-1785 R & F P.N. PRESS	7-20-77 7-29-77 7-29-77 <b>AUG 18 1977</b>	RENEWAL OF LICENSE  Atty. Carl R. Ramey (McKenna, Wilkinson & Kittner)	GRANTED	6-14-78
BLH-7502 R & F PTA PRESS	7-9-77 8-8-77 8-18-77 <b>SEP 6 1977</b>	Lic. (BPH-10243) for chgs 2nd RC loc: 2655 Carlsbad Blvd., Carlsbad, CA  Atty. Carl R. Ramey      Engr. Marvin D. Vopper	GRANTED	7-3-78 with BRH-1875

#13

95.9mhz.

Form BC-121  
May 1976

## APPLICATION RECORD - BROADCASTING

Call  
Letters KKOSName Tri-Cities Broadcasting, Inc.  
Carlsbad, California

File No.	Dated	Application for	Action	
			Nature	Date
BPH-10713 R & F	9-16-77 9-20-77	GP install new Antenna (COLLINS-G5CPM-2, 2 sections (h&v).  Atty - Carl R. Ramey Engr - Marvin D. Vasper	ACCEPTED & GRANTED	11-2-77
BLH-7647 R & F PTA: PRESS:	1-5-78 1-10-78 1-16-78 MAR 3 1978	Lic. (BPH-10713) for changes.  Atty---	GRANTED issued with BRH-1785	7-3-78
	3-28-80 6-16-80	MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME FILED BY CARL R. RAMEY ON BEHALF OF TRI-CITIES BROADCASTING, INC. LICENSEE OF KKOS(FM) MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME FILED BY CARL R. RAMEY ON BEHALF OF TRI-CITIES BROADCASTING, INC.		
BRH 800801 W L PRESS	SEP 5 1980	RENEWAL OF LICENSE (MAIN & AUX. TRANS.) Carl R. Ramey, Atty.		11-24-80

## About the History Cards ...

History Cards were first used by the Department of Commerce to keep track of applications filed by, and changes to, the earliest AM broadcast stations in the early 1920s. The records were subsequently transferred to the Federal Radio Commission in 1927, and after that to the Federal Communications Commission when that agency was created in 1934. These cards gradually grew into a large card file.

FM History Cards were initiated in the early 1940s, with the authorization of the earliest FM stations in the FM band, then at 42 to 50 MHz. (The band was shifted to its present location, 88 to 108 MHz, in 1946.) History Cards remained in use until the creation of the first computerized database in 1980 to track broadcast applications, the Broadcast Application Processing System (BAPS). However, the Commission did not transfer the data from the History Cards to the new system. Instead, it retained the History Cards in their original form for reference.

In 1999, the Commission moved to a new location (445 12<sup>th</sup> Street SW), and also at that time created the successor database to BAPS, the Consolidated DataBase System (CDBS). Prior to that move, the History Cards were transferred to microfiche by a contractor (only a few sets of microfiche exist), and the original paper cards were destroyed. The History Cards were stored on the microfiche as negative images, like those you see above.

History Cards contain very brief entries and notes about station facilities, applications, and ownership. They are not, and never were intended to be, a comprehensive record of a station's operations. Nevertheless, they can be useful to help determine, for example, when a station first went on the air and its call letters at that time. History Card comments were generally typed onto the cards, and thus some records will show more faintly or with more smudging than others, depending on the quality of typewriter and ribbon then used. Occasional handwritten comments, corrections, and strikeouts may also be found. Cards may be incomplete, missing, or occasionally out of sequence.

The History Cards are presented here as they were copied to microfiche, to preserve this record for public use, and with the hope that they will be of value to future researchers of radio station history.

